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CHAIR HOKAMA:
.(gavel)... This is the Council’s Committee on Budget and Finance.
Today is Monday, the 1 1t of April 2016. Present this morning at our Committee
meeting is our Vice-Chairman, Mr. White.
.

.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Good morning, Chair.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning. And Committee members, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Cochran.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Aloha. Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Morning.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And Mr. Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Aloha, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We excuse Ms. Balsa and Mr. Guzman at this time. Before we start the
days’ review, Members, a few things, housekeeping. One, we will take testimony
shortly. Before we take testimony, we shall place all our interrupting yet annoying,
noisemaking devices on silent or off mode (phone recording message on speaker mode
in background). We always seem to have a technolor issue. Okay. That’s fine.
Thank you, Steve. Yeah. I mean, we’ll do what we can. Okay. As Staff tries to make
the district communication’s connections workable, well start testimony within the
Chamber, since we have requests.

.BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY..
Each person has three minutes to share their thoughts with the
CHAIR HOKAMA:
Committee on items of... as... that we have posted for the agenda. State your name
please, if you represent an entity, we request that organization’s name please. And
So well ask
other than that, you have three minutes to share your thoughts.
Mr. Jeffrey Paisner who would like to share his thoughts with us this morning. If you
would please come forward to the podium and present your testimony please. Green
means you have.. .you know, keep speaking. Yellow means you have 30 seconds to
conclude, and red means your three minutes are up, sir. So if you would introduce
yourself and share your thoughts with us please?
MR. PAISNER: Aloha, Members of the Council. I’m Jeffrey Paisner. I’m currently not a
resident of the island of Maui but have been a resident since.. .for about 45 years. I’m
the owner of a private piece of property in Lower Nahiku village. Currently the bridge
has been closed by the County of Maui as of Friday, 26 September 2014. As a result
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of this, I do not have access to my property. Nor do two of my friends who own
properties on the Xeanae side of the bridge. I did have to get an easement to get
access to my own property so I clearly know what the process is to get an easement to
determine whose properties that you have to go through to get an easement.
Supposedly the County of Maui is supposed to be moving forward to find out which
properties that the bridge may encroach on. But let’s be clear, this bridge is a historic
bridge. It used to be the only means of access to Hana from Wailua when boats used
to go to the landing in Nahiku. The only way to get onto the King’s Highway and get a
vehicle to Hana was over the Lower Nahiku bridge. You all should know that in the
State Resolution HR3 in 2008, that the State legislature determined that ownership of
this bridge should be determined. They recommended that the County of Maui act on
this to repair the bridge for the safety of the residents of Nahiku. Quite frankly, it fell
I want to make a
Nobody has followed up on this.
through the cracks.
recommendation because I don’t come here adversarially. I believe that the bridge
should be repaired at least temporarily. I believe the bridge has a historic value to the
community of Nahiku at... to remain as a wooden bridge. I do know there’s much
dissention in Lower Nahiku among residents. I want to make it clear to the Members
of the Council that the Nahiku Community Association does not represent the will of
the majority of the Lower Nahiku residents, and they should not be considered the
only people who should be included in this process. But I do understand their
sentiments about wanting to keep Hawaiian traditions alive. I do understand their
sentiments about wanting to have a community center. I want the Council to consider
not putting the center in the location of the old school but to put it.. find land to buy
on the Hana Highway, where there’s clear access and less danger from title waves and
other issues. So I do appeal to the County Council to please act on the decisions of
the State Legislature which were made as far back as 2008 and to be... go pro-active.
And if you need help to get an easement either by adverse possession or eminent
domain, nobody has ever stopped anyone from going over that bridge. Conditions are
very dangerous down there now. The guard rails are rotten. Tourists are defecating in
public areas now. The bridge is rotting now. It’s a very dangerous situation which is
going to expose both the County of Maui and the State of Hawaii to great liability. So I
appeal to you to come up with the funds to at least temporarily repair the bridge until
you come to a proper solution. Thank you for your time.
.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for your testimony. Any questions for the gentleman? Thank
you very much, Mr. Paisner. Next we’ll ask Mike Moran if he’d come down and share
his thoughts with us please.
MR. MORAN: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Good morning.
MR. MORAN: And Committee members. Mike Moran for the Kihei Community Association.
Each year when we all receive the budget from the Mayor, we examine many aspects of
it, and one feature we see with recurring frustration is the fund by district summary.
Examining the data presented offers an unbiased perception using figures presented
to us by the Administration. And invariably every year, Kihei-Makena receives a
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disproportionate lesser share. Quick analysis for 2017, Kihei-Makena 13.6 percent,
West Maui 26 percent, Makawao-Kula 11.3 percent, and Central 17.6 percent. We
only mention this so that when we need... when you need to make adjustments, please
be aware that for some reason the Administration has already shorted us in our
opinion. That said, if you have the opportunity to examine what we offered last
Tuesday evening, we fairly examined the CIP for Kihei-Makena and do not just rubber
stamp all projects in our area but rationally ask for support of what is most needed
and question what may not be at this time. So today for Parks and Recreation, CBS2742 the South Maui Building Maintenance Repairer Baseyard. We believe this
expenditure of $1.45 million to create a Parks and Rec Department baseyard
somewhere in the South Maui community to reposition their equipment from the
Community Center parking lot is a questionable expense at this time. Let’s get the
gym construction moving and determine if the 2016 funding is sufficient. Further, we
ask if an old Department equipment baseyard in South Maui perhaps located near the
Wastewater Treatment facility for Parks, Department of Public Works, Water,
et cetera, might be more practical than individual ones. Therefore at this time until a
closer examination of this expenditure is possible, we would not support it. Moving on
to CBS- 1118 and 2345, we support improving all our very well used park system and
continuing development at the aforementioned community park with this funding for
CBS 2359, Waipuilani Park Irrigation System, we are
more athletic fields.
disappointed that the long proposed and seemingly approved two years ago bike path
across this park has disappeared completely except in this step. We are dismayed
with the claims of Federal challenges for simple pedestrian bike gulch crossing,
causing years delay, while there was no delay placing a recycled waterline across it. In
addition, citizens’ attempt to donate park benches at the same park, is ignored by the
Department.
But after an explanation of the current irrigations situation from
Councilmember Couch, we support this expenditure. Mahalo,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Moran. And again, Mike, if you do have additional things
that you have written down, we’re happy to accept that as written testimony. So if you
have additional things you wanted to share with us, please submit it.
MR. MORAN: Thank you, sir. I actually.. .1 was better timed today with the timing. And I
didn’t resubmit what we sent you last Tuesday. You folks have enough paper as it is.
But thank you for the opportunity.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mike. Any questions for Mr. Moran on testimony presented?
Thank you for being here this morning.
MR. MORAN: Thankyou.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I will ask our Hana District. Ms. Lono, anyone wishing to provide
testimony? Ms. Lono, Hana District, can you hear us? And if you do, is there anyone
wishing to provide testimony?
MS. LONO: Yes. Good morning, Chair. This is Dawn Lono at the Hana office, and there is
no one waiting to testify.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Ms. Lono. Ms. Fernandez? Anyone on Lanai wishing to
Ms. Alcon, anyone on Molokai wishing to provide
Okay.
provide testimony?
testimony?
MS. ALCON: Good morning, Chair. This is Ella Alcon on Molokai and there is no one here
waiting to testify.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, ladies. Is there anyone else wishing to provide
testimony today? Having none, Members, with no objections we shall close testimony
for today’s meeting.
COUNCILMEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Members. Testimony is hereby closed.
.END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY...

ITEM 1:

PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2017 BUDGET FOR THE COUNTY
OF MAUI f CC 16-29)

CHAIR HOKAMA: Just for general information, we will be going to Molokai this day to take
comments this evening from the community on the proposed Fiscal Year Budget.
Which means tomorrow we start at 10:00 a.m. back here in the Chamber. And I do
know you have different flight arrangements so we understand not all airlines are on
time. So well make the appropriate adjustments for tomorrow’s meeting. Okay. This
morning we will start the review of Capital Improvement Projects or commonly known
as CIPs. We will start with the Department of Parks and Recreation. So this morning,
Ill ask Mr. Baz if he has anything first to share regarding this component?
MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning, Members. The Parks and Recreation’s
Capital Improvement Summary starts on Page 793, and they have a number of
projects that the project sheets detail information presented to help you make good
decisions on what we’re requesting for this upcoming year. So we do have our Parks
Director, Mr. Kaala Buenconsejo, and our Deputy Director, Brianne Savage, here as
well to provide some information about these projects. So, Mr. Chair, well move
forward.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well have the Department go through their projects, one at a time.
I will ask the Members to pay special attention, please, as our sister.. .we have learned
Honolulu County, Big Island County, they attach in their Budget Ordinances their
CIP, which is what I’m planning to do this year. Whatever we want, it’s gonna end up
being called appendix D. Whatever it is, we will have it attached to the Budget
Ordinance where we will be further defining the description of the projects. So we are
clearly aware of what we’re authorizing, what Department’s requests and are going to
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accomplish, and there’s no wiggle room of words of what it means, Okay. With that,
Department, Mr. Director? If you would start us off please?

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Morning, Chair, Councilmembers. Thank you for having us this
morning. I guess to get right into it, regarding our CI? projects for Countywide this
year, for our ADA, we currently are requesting for Fiscal Year $300,000. This project’s
an ongoing program to implement the county’s ADA transition plan to provide
handicapped accessibility for park facilities. FY’ 17 projects include accessibility
improvements at Kaliului School Park, Kepaniwai Park, Sun YatSen, numerous beach
parks, community centers, swimming pools, and the Waiehu Golf Course. Chair, any
questions for us?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Director? Anything else?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No, Chair. For.. .we’re here,.. any questions Deputy Director Savage
and myself are here to answer any questions for this particular CIP project.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Let’s go Countywide. I think Ms. Crivello is the Vice-Chair of our
Parks Committee. So any questions at this time, Ms. Crivello? Oh. I’m sorry,
Ms. Cochran. I’m sorry. Why don’t you start?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Mr. Guzman’s not here. Okay. No. I mean, this is
something that we need to, I guess it’s a continuous work in progress every year. And
seems to be that we never quite complete it. It’s just a ongoing so for me, it’s
something that we need to keep on top of. And I suppose they have figured out a
timeline and consecutive, you know, order of which parks are going to be attended
to.. .and from here on out. But how did you.. .so I see we did 200,000 worth last year?
Or I guess this present year. And then ensuing year, you’re looking to add another
100,000 to it? And then the following year... so, you know, you progressively go up,
but then you drop back down. So how did you determine this? Or prioritize, I guess,
the areas too, that you are addressing?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Ms. Cochran? Member Cochran, so it’s based on our project list that
we have currently and what potentially has, may have lapsed from the year before,
would, may have taken more of to do. And again to answer.. .to kind of make a mark
on your statement as well is, it is ongoing. It’s.. .there’s no way we can do it all in a
year.
And with the everchanging rules and regulations, and with our aging
infrastructure in parks, some of these facilities as we get to it, we try to priorities
what’s the biggest safety hazard and go to that list as well as we go down to our ADA.
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But it is an ongoing effort to try and catch up. And again with changing laws that
sometimes are initiated from State side, you know, again it’s almost typical where we
gotta go back again even after we did something and any kind of changes to it, we
have to go and redo it again as well. So yeah. So as far as the list and the jump in the
100,000, it’s just trying to get more projects out in that year that we can.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Airight.
efforts. Thank you, Chair.

Well, very good.

Thank you very much for your

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. I note that nothing has been encumbered from this
account, year to date. This 200,000 appropriated and nothing’s been spent. Can you
give us an idea of what projects are about to be encumbered? ‘Cause one of the other
things I noticed is that in the 2016 request, Kepaniwai Park and Waiehu Golf Course
are both listed and they’re listed again this year.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Member White, yes. So we are currently in design with the 16
so a lot of those.. .for Kepaniwai and Waiehu Golf Course especially. Those are bigger
projects. The ADA ramping, in keeping everything ADA compliant with that whole
entire Kepaniwai Heritage Park and the pavilions as well. So we actually currently do
have that going out for bid But again, some of that is just for design, and then we do
a construction phase as well for some of those project.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So what are we likely to be able to accomplish with 200,000?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: For that particular one, Chair, definitely the design and we’re at
so.. .the rest of Kepaniwai should be completed as well, We did part of that project
already. If anyone has been there recently, there’s that new ADA path that takes you
from the parking lot to the bottom restroom. Not to the one that’s on the very bottom,
bottom as you enter the gates, but the middle of the pavilions, there’s a restroom
there. That was one phase of the Kepaniwai. And then we have also have some other
phases within the pavilions. Connecting the pavilions together, all of that also has to
be ADA compliant as well. And ideally, there is one, I’m not sure if it is in the Fiscal
Year ‘17, but also within the heritages, within the different user groups that we have,
up on the upper part of the parking lot. Those pave ways.. .those walkways, will
eventually need to be redone as well.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So is the $300,000 that you’re requesting this year based on the
design work that you’ve been doing with the 2016 monies?
-7-
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It’s actually construction as well.
Chair?
So we do have
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
.designs
somewhat
completed
and
done.
And
now
some
of that will be
some..
are
towards the construction costs. And if there’s anything that comes arise as we
progress through Kepaniwai Park, that will also be used for that as well.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Victorino?
Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Yeah.
And thank you,
Mr. Buenconsejo.
I was up there a couple weeks ago.
So I did see those
improvements. And thank you. A lot more needs to be done since that’s such a
heavily used park. And gating and some other fencing also needs to be inclusive,
we’ve talked about that in here. Yeah. As far as that is concerned. My other
questions is, you know, these upcoming expenditures, you have.. .most of ‘em you
have a lot of it was bonds. Have like... I read about the Upcountry Skate Park, where
are we with that? I read that in the paper the other day. And I thought that was very
interesting.
We finally got an Upcountry stage... Skate Park for the people of
Upcountry, you know. So can you explain that a little bit, Mr. Buenconsejo?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Department?
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Member Victorino, yes, it’s very exciting to finally get that Upcountry
Skate Park over in Pukalani. The design was just completed. And we’ll be having
actually a community meeting to kind of go over the design, in case there’s any kind of
tweaks that may be done within the community groups. But that is scheduled for
tomorrow at 6:00 p.m. over at Pukalani Community Center. So it’s a long awaited for
those user groups up at the Upcountry area. I know they’ve been waiting for it for a
while. And it is in a budget item here, as we get down to the Makawao-Pukalani area.
That is in the CBS 32... sorry, CBS 3208 as we get down to that list. But it is
complete. So now it’s just bringing it into inception as we move forward in the budget
session.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Very good.
The other question I had here in.. .War
Memorial last year, if I remember correctly, we appropriated for the War Memorial
Parking lot, the football parking lot. I thought we appropriated 300,000 to resurface.
And some of the challenge was of course, the trees, I remember that one being a
challenge. But I believe if I remember correctly, we did allocate money and I still
haven’t seen anything done. So, am I incorrect in saying that?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this anything to do with this ADA compliance requirement?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Oh not that... oh.
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Not currently on the ADA, as we get down, Mr. Victorino, we can talk
about that Wailuku one, as we get to that part of the CIP though.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: But was part of that, not part of the both the baseball and
football stadium’s compliance for ADA?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Let me pass that to Deputy Director Savage, she may have
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That’s why

--

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: --have more information on that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --I brought the question up, because there was something
to do with ADA compliance with the parking.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Department?
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So there were some compliance with, I think, it was the
gymnasium primarily, that were listed in the initial ADA transition plan that needed to
be complied with because of the master planning process that was being done for the
gymnasium. Some of those were put on hold until that was able to kind of be fleshed
out the rest of the way. Because if there’s going to be major renovations done to a
facility, we didn’t want to be spending money, you know, to make an improvement
that we were just going to be maybe taking out or redoing in the foreseeable future.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. So that hasn’t been done?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
Mr. Chair.

Okay.

So that’s what I was looking for.

Thank you,

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that question. So you, at this point in time, the both
of you, feel.. .you’re confident about the ability for us to complete our... all required
projects by Fiscal Year ‘21?
Thank you, Chair,
MS. SAVAGE:
Just for kind of clarification, I think our ADA
improvements kind of fall into two different categories. Right now we’re still working
on completing the transition plan that came out, not sure exactly which year it was.
But that’s been primarily the projects that we’re working on. So we work on this
transition plan and accomplishing all the items that are clearly identified on that list,
and then if there’s any requests that come from the public for accessibility needs,
those jump to the top of the list. So that’s how the Department’s worked through.
We’re kind of in a place now where we’re trying to move into creating a new transition
plan that looks comprehensively at all of our facilities, and that’ll require us doing an
audit essentially, and inspection on each of the different facilities, identifying what are
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the needs at each of those locations, and then prioritizing those. So the transition
plan that we’re working on, yes, we see that is something that we’ll be completing out
in the very, very near future. But there will be.. .need to be that creation of a
transition plan looking forward at all of our facilities. And then once we have that
plan created, we’ll be able to present that and have a much better idea of kind of a
number... a number of projects in order to have as close as possible to full or
maximum ADA access at as many of our facilities as is possible.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You folks have a priority list of the,. .which parks and in what order
you plan to attack those challenges? How you folks approaching this, Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, we do have a priority list again based on. .of course first thing
is always safety being on top of the priority, but we do have a priority list broken down
by district as well, and we’d be more than happy to share that to you folks, via.. .we
can send that up to you folks as well.
.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. It’s something you have available, Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, Chair, we do have that

--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --in our Planning and Development Department.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, it would kind of make it, tie into how you approach your additional
years proposed funding levels, ‘cause I think it was mentioned earlier that there’ll be a
bump next year request, and then you going back to flat funding in half of the balance
of the six-year projection. So let us know how you wanna. .how you plan to attack
that. Bring up the next two Countywide requests of yours.
.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Seven hundred fifty thousand for toilet trailers and your 750,000 for your
playground improvements.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair. So the first appropriation for $750,000 is our ten
toilet trailers. These units can be placed at facilities that do not have restrooms. They
can also move from... to facilities for special events and placed at facilities where
restrooms is out of order and under renovations. The second one as well, as
mentioned, is the playground designs. Many of the Department’s existing playgrounds
are old and in an unsafe condition. Some have been removed, while others are in need
of extensive repairs and maintenance or replacement. Chair, we’re here for any
questions or concerns you may have on that. Oh. Yes. Chair, just to clarify my
statement.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: The unsafe playgrounds have been removed or closed, So there are
no unsafe playgrounds in operation use. They are actually all taken down by now.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You have something visual for us to see what this trailer supposed to be?
Director? Do you have something that way we can kinda put it better together?
‘Cause.. .we have a sense of what it looks like?

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, we do. We do have some photos that we could send up. For
those who have been. Looks like Chair White has a picture of a trailer that could
maybe be put up there. For those who have been up to the Waiehu Golf Course.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If it’s his tractor, I saw the tractor.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. I seen that.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
Waiehu Golf Course

So currently we have three we use out.

We have one at the

--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --for the overflow when they do have special events there. Our... of
course our sewage system there is in need of repair as well. We also have one at
Ainakea Park for that shut down of the restroom there. And we currently have one in
Hana for the Helene Hall. However, that is on its way back to Wailuku due to some
vandalism to the doors, and we need to get that all replaced. And I’m sorry, there’s
one at Lahaina Skate Park, or did I mention that already? So those are the existing
current trailers. They’re great. They actually are ADA compliant, and it’s nice and
clean, and our park caretakers are the ones who do the maintenance of that, but we
do have a contract that does the pumping of course for the sewage and water and
things like that.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. You keep.. .plan to keep this mobile or this is a.. .what is the State’s
way at schools? Temporary permanent portables?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I think that term is perfect. Temporary portable. Again, I think
the good thing is that it is movable. It gives us the opportunity during special events
or any kind of emergency that we may have, that it can be picked up and moved. So
that is always a luxury of that. The priority that we thought, from the Department’s
standpoint is replacing those restrooms that were shut down due to the cesspool
situation that we’re dealing with through the State with EPA standards. And replacing
those restrooms there, where we don’t have any short-term replacements, trying to
figure out what avenue we gonna take with the current buildout of restrooms if we
need be.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And I’m sure for Mr. Baz, you did your analysis of purchase versus lease
because it’s 75,000 a pop you asking us for.
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MR. BAZ: Yeah. Mr. Chair, we did not analyze purchase versus lease for these trailers,
because the expected useful life for them would go beyond any lease arrangement. I
mean we could do a different financing option versus, you know, either lease or bond.
If.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I was just was wondering if you did your cost analysis

--

MR. BAZ: No, I did not.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Mr. Baz, for them.
supposed to be dedicated for?

So which facilities or what sites is this ten-unit

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? So we have some tentative sites, Haiku Community Center
which is one that the current restroom had to be demolished and removed. Of course,
the Raceway Park, That has been shut down for a while. Currently they just bringing
the Porta Potties during events and we have Porta Potties there—
CHAIR HOKAMA: Isn’t that the tenants responsibility or is that our responsibility?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, it’s ours on a daily, with the current agreement we do have. It
is our responsibility. However, we do as a County require them to bring in extra Porta
Potties during special events. So for, you know, drag strip days and motocross days,
they do bring in more.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Hanakaoo’s another one. Kamehameha Ike, with that one being
taken down, that restroom was on the mauka side of Kamehameha Ike, where the
And then again, Waikapu
Moku’ula, by the tennis courts and all that area.
Community Center’s another one, that we’re.. .needs to be disposed of as far as the
restroom and bringing in a replacement there as well. And again, having those on
hand, just definitely...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is that cesspool issues or septic tank issues? And we not connected to the
system? I mean, what is the issues with the like, Waikapu?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. So for Waikapu we’re not tied in. There is an option
CHAIR HOKAMA:

...

--

not tied in. Okay.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: --to tie in.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Got it.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: But currently that is currently on a cesspool that was again, required
to shut down, with the EPA standards through the State. So there is no.. .right now
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we have two Porta Potties over at Waikapu for the basketball court side, You also have
the center side which is fine. It’s the basketball side.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The center side is okay, it’s the court side?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, it’s the court side that has no tie-ins. There is a line that is there
that we could tie into, And that is part of that master plan that we have there at
Waikapu Community Center, that we could tie in now that there is a line there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. One thing that was interesting and maybe was just a oversight, but
I notice there’s no O&M money for this request. So, am I going to be happy that
there’s no cost to maintain?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. Chair, so you. ..our current staff is maintaining those particular
portables in that area. So we don’t see any for cost coming in with the bringing of the
trailers. Some of that staff was there with the parks that were say so called restrooms
that they were maintaining to begin with. So having that as more of.. .it’s more of a
one-for-one kind of thing where they’re coming and you have to maintain it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What’s your general understanding of the warranty for this type of
equipment you’re asking us for? Five-year warranty?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, offhand I wouldn’t know the exact warranty. Honestly I believe
it was a one-year, just based on the Hana. ..dealing with the Hana restroom that we
had out there. And with some of the repairs we had, I want to say it’s a year, but I
would have to get back to you to confirm that for sure.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. And everything is self-contained. Director? You don’t need any
other specialized equipment or parts to make this a functioning unit? Once you get
the trailer, it’s operational?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes. Just the transportation that we do. Yeah. Everything is
operational. As long as there’s sunlight, it is run by solar. The batteries are powered
by solar.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And everything else is brought in through a company that, as far as
pumping and everything else, that’s the one thing we have to contract out is the
pumping.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And which you already have a third service, third-party vendor, right?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Your. ..what is your current cycle of... twice-a-week maintenance?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, depending on the scope, or park that they’re at. For some
we’re, say at Canoe Beach, we’d probably do two to three times a week, depending on
the regatta season. Just for instance, Helene Hall with the current Porta Potties there,
it’s three times a week with the usage because of the.,. our local use and the tourism
use at Hana Bay, that it does get... it can get costly when it comes to the usage and the
area that those trailers are at. Which is why we weigh out the fact of is it cheaper to
build out the restroom again, and running a system or going to the portable way.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So we are pricing that out as well.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No. No, we’re happy to hear that you making those assessments,
Director, which pleases me, Okay. Any additional security requirements you would
need? I mean, you know, you asking us to pump out three-quarters of a million
dollars for this. Is this like smart trailers? You touch it and, you know, unauthorized,
you going get one nice shock or something?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No. Chair, I will say, you know, with the current restrooms that we do
have.., and again, even one at a skate park in Lahaina, I’m surprised that, you know,
the users, you know, they maintain what they have. I mean they know that’s the
restroom that they got. So again, not trying to go about skate park or skate users, but
they do a, you know, it’s in great shape. There’s no graffiti, you know, for the most
part. The maintenance of that, there was a couple of little incidents. But the way it is,
it’s very easy, somewhat easy to take off from our maintenance standpoint. So we’re
happy with what we got. I think that it works. And it definitely isn’t your usual, you
know, walk into your typical Porta Potti. You do have that feel that, you know, it’s a
lot more comfortable.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, later I would like you and your Deputy to meet with me and my
Chief of Staff. I’m open to a lot of your requests, Department. I’m not sold that things
need to be all under general bond. Okay? We creating one enterprise, Department.
I’m not so keen on doing a lot of borrowing up front. So we can find ways to work on
this ‘cause, I don’t like the borrowing numbers right now.
MR. BAZ: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Baz?
And
MR. BAZ:
Can I make a comment?
I appreciate your comments for sure.
understanding that, you know, the Department has a desire and the Administration
has a desire to generate more revenue for this area that we have. There are significant
opportunities, as you’ve identified and as the Department’s been working on for
creating revenue sources. We don’t have a significant amount of revenue yet. We do
in certain areas but not real specific to what you’re mentioning. The authority for us
to do these improvements with bond financing means that should future revenue
sources be available to us to repay those bond finances, we can pay for those out of
-
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those restricted revenues, the enterprise fund type of revenues. Similar to what we do
with the other bond issuances that we provide for the other departments with special
revenue funds. So it’s a balance, Mr. Chair, if you want to look at whether or not the
General fund cash you want to spend now or bond that can be repaid by special
revenues? So I just... I appreciate the opportunity to make that comment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Mr. Baz. I didn’t expect anything else than what you just said,
Mr. Baz, So you’re very consistent, and I like that consistency from you. However,
that’s not how the Chairs’ going to approach his Chair’s draft. The other thing I
wanted to bring up is, you know, with the trailers? It’s part of a... I guess you can say
it has a connection to the sewer program, because we not. maybe we not do the new
facility. We going do the trailer. That would qualify for State SRF loans on the
wastewater?
.

.

MR. BAZ: Thank you, Mr. Chair, for the question. From my understanding of the SRF loans
for safe drinking water or safe water, I do not believe that these would be able to be
eligible, because they’re not really expanding the service provision to the public. I
mean it is but it’s a very small aspect of it.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well...
MR. BAZ: It’s a good question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, I think Ms. Baisa would, you know, philosophy of you don’t
ask, you don’t get. You know, it works in this situation. So why don’t we tell the
State, we have a proposal? We want to do this with SRF loan? They might say yes. I
mean, you know, they.. .1 mean we can anticipate the no. But I think for some
agencies, it’s so desperate as bureaucrats to get their monies out there in the cycle.
They might make adjustments for people like us who not necessarily dependent on
those funds. Ms. Cochran, questions in this CIP areas?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah. Yeah. Thank you very much, Chair.
the toilet trailers, are these on a list to be rented to the public too?

In regards to

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Member Cochran, currently no. They’re not part of a rental.
We do as a Department like mention, if we know there’s going to be a heavy area
whether it be a surfing thing at Hookipa or Kanaha windsurf, we have the capability to
just bring it down there, just to help with the overflow of people that will be there. But
it is currently not on a rental program. But in the put.. .in the future, being if we have,
say, an inventory of trailers, one or two that are extra, that is something that we could
definitely put into the system as well as far as
--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --being on regular... as far as being on a fee schedule as well.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. I mean, having gone through that structure and
seeing, you know, rentals of tables and chairs and what have you, I mean this is a
huge ticket item, possibly to recoup some type of money to put back into the program.
But I just... curious, the trailer you said in Hana, I recall it being there. And I think it
was sitting around for possibly a year, and waiting to get a sorta I guess, padded
platform type area on the lawn across the street laid out, so it can be moved in order
to be put into use. In the meantime, I guess now vandalism has occurred and now
you folks have taken it away. So I didn’t realize the cost of such an equipment but it
sat there for all that time, rust... started to rust and everything and now vandalized
and now, I mean really, it just seems like such a waste for it to have been there and
not used for why it was drug out there and now it’s just being taken away. So I.. .you
know, I hope that, that type of practice is not going to occur with these ones that
you’re asking for, because that’s kind of a shameful thing that had occurred out in
Hana.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So. Yeah. Ms. Cochran, to answer that. So yeah, there was definitely
a stagnant period where the trailer sat. The original reason for that was working out a
right of entry with Hana Ranch. The actual area that it was sitting on was Hana
Ranch land. It wasn’t currently Parks Department, and the proposal to move it across
the street onto the lawn, in communicating with the different community people there,
it was where do they want to put it? Because you are taking space out from potential
areas that they use currently for when they have the parties on that grass area that we
were gonna move it across the street. Yes, it did sit there though. So we’re not saying
that it didn’t sit there. It was just working out, you know, the biggest thing was, we
were called to get it out there. We got it out there and to tell you the truth, the
planning wasn’t prepared prior to us dropping the trailer there and not realizing that,
that parking lot wasn’t County property. It was Hana Ranch. We have resolved that
with Hana Ranch and working out with that. We did finally come to a reasoning to
put it as well across the street, makai side of the road onto the lawn. The other issue
again, and we are looking at it now that is a thing in our eyes, is that again it runs on
solar. So we have to make sure of where we put these trailers that there is sunlight.
The batteries and everything run on solar. So we are aware that. These future sites
that we are doing is County property. So there is no reason to try and get a right of
entry and everything else. So again lesson learned on that particular area. And that’s
basically it. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you very much, And then, in regards to Hanakao’o,
am I to think that the restrooms are out of order once again?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this is part of your Countywide?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: This.,,
CHAIR HOKAMA: We on Countywide so if this is not part of Countywide, please let
Ms. Cochran know when you gonna talk about it.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, you’re asking for one of these trailers to be housed
there at that beach. So I’m wondering.., and I did just notice three Porta Potties up
there against the wail of the actual restroom. So I’m wondering are they again out of
order? And so, Chair, if so then we may discuss this in another time. If it is and
wondering why and what can I do to help assist? To...

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. So you are right. Yes, it is out of order again. The request for
Hanakaoo is for there as well because of the large user groups now, from the three
canoe groups as well as the regular locals and tourists that use that area. That we do
want to have a trailer that can be designated there and possibly put somewhere near
the hales or in that area. The current pumps were just replaced and they did burn
out. We are in the works with our Risk Management, because we believe some of that
was due to the loss of power that was a few weeks back that was in Kaanapali. And
somehow our pumps didn’t trigger or it didn’t turn off. The other thing we’re working
with, currently I’m working with the Director of Environmental Management. Because
again, the pump station is in Parks’ property and it is to just pump our restrooms.
However the Parks Department does not have the skill set or position to maintain
those kind of things. And it is put on the Department to maintain it because it’s
Parks’ property; however, we don’t have the engineers or the knowledge that
Environmental Management does when it comes to those pump station and transfer
stations to be pushing it through. And currently, it’s one of those things where, you
know, we gotta communicate and work with each other. And possibly turn all of our
sewer pump stations that are... even though it’s on Parks’ property, we don’t have the
skill sets currently to maintain those things. And yes, so it was brandnew motors
that were put in their pumps and they did burn. So the bathrooms are out currently,
we have actually five Porta Potties there. Three on one side, a ADA one, and another
one, next to the ADA. To operate that, we are again, we are in communications with
Environmental Management though. They are helping us. But as we get those back
up and running, you know, it’s just working on an agreement that we can have them
kinda maintain that pump station. Thank you, Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Well, thank you very much for that opportunity for an
update on that park. Thank you, Chair. That’s all.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Just wanted to ask couple questions regarding Molokai. Are
we just Countywide?
-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Countywide.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Oh, okay. I’m good, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. White?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. You have the $5,000 purchase price. But there’s
a,.,I don’t know if this was the bid that was selected, but in 20 14-15 there was a quote
from AMS Global at 177,000 for two. And that includes delivery. So does the.. .I’m
assuming the 750,000 you’re projecting includes delivery?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair. Yes. So there.. .that does include delivery. During that order
there were two different trailers ordered. One was a three unit-trailer. And the other
one, I want to say is a five, four-or-five-unit trailer. So the ones that were at Waiehu
Golf Course is your larger one. The one that was in Hana was your larger one. And
the one at the Skate Park and Ainakea Park are your three unit trailers. But it
does... all of them, they do the delivery of that. What I mentioned about hiring is the
ones that... the delivery is to our base yard or to the actuai site. Once we pick up and
move again, that is on, of course the Department to
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --get those trailered out. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So are you ordering a mix this time of large and small? Or is it all one
size?
CHAIR HOKAMA. Department?
MS. SAVAGE:: Thank you, Chair. So of the size of the units, what we order is it actually
considered the small and medium size. And those, the small usuaily run at 60,000.
The mediums at 80,000. And then the larger ones we would anticipate between a
100,000 and a 120,000 each. So we’d like to get a couple larger units that would be
bigger than the ones, the two that we currently have, to place at some of the locations
and then a series of the small and medium ones. So that number ten may fluctuate
based upon the actual size.. .yeah, the selection of sizes, but it will be an assortment.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
1$

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 11, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Sorry. Member White, so it is a five. Got a confirmation it’s a
five-unit. So we have three-unit and a five-unit that we currently ordered. And based
on the location and the use is where we’d make the judgment of what area those
would go. But it will be mix of purchases for that.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO:

..

.(inaudible).

.

.money.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And you named several locations where you need.. .we need to have
these units brought in. Of the eight to ten units that you’re bringing in, how many
have current destinations that you’d like to place them? Or how many have a
projected home at this point?
And how many are gonna be extras for other
eventualities?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Go ahead.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: I think we’ll definitely find homes for every single one of ‘em if given
the ten. However, currently, I think we get seven that will definitely have homes that
we can definitely state out. But if we do get the trailers and we look into it, we kinda
want to have one on standby. I think having one in inventory just to have as backup
is always a good thing. But again, if, we definitely six to seven have been.. we can find
a home like today. We got ten, well find a home for it tomorrow. We.. .there is
definitely areas that we could use it. And having those special events, having those
heavy use areas, even Kanaha Beach Park’s another area where the only restroom is
the main area parking lot where, you know, where go down more towards kite beach
area, you could definitely put a trailer there as well. And keep them out of the
surrounding native habitats. So there are areas that we can use.
.

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. You know, we keep using the word trailers yeah? And trailers
mean portable, yet there’s no wheels on this equipment. Which means, it’s not really
portable. Somebody’s gonna have to have a giant lift or crane or something to move
this thing. So from DSA’s perspective, you don’t need any permits or anything?
Because this is.. .there is no wheels attached for the very visible portability of the
facility or the restrooms?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? There actually are some wheels on there that makes it
portable, that you hook up onto the trailer and you actually tow it away, in an extent.
So there are wheels that do make it portable.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So the picture that was given to Mr. White and I’m looking at, you guys
took off the wheels? Because it’s on asphalt pads.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, you know, I’m gonna have to get back to you. But there are
wheels. I know the one at Waiehu Golf Course, even at.. .1 think it moves. I think
hydraulically it goes in there. The reason we had an issue over in Hana was because
So we had to get new battery
the batteries weren’t charged from the solar.
replacements, because it couldn’t get the hydraulic to get the wheels out. But I can
definitely get back to you on that. But there are wheels to it, I know that. Because,
any truck... not any truck, but a bigger-sized truck will actually hitch it up and it can
be towed out. It doesn’t need to be actually lifted with a forklift and placed on a bed to
be towed.
CHAIR HOKAMA: This can be driven out?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: As a hitch?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: With a hitch?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh. I thought you guys.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m sorry.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: I never seen it,
CHAIR HOKAMA: I apologize. I thought you guys knew what I was looking at. I’m sorry. My
apologies.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: No.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Mr. Baz had the picture up there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. He had one.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Oh. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That’s the one.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: That’s like the silver bullet. You know, the old kind train or cabooses, Ill
ask, Mr. White, why don’t you come up here for a few moments for me please? And
then, Mr. Guzman, any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I’m okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. On this Countywide, are we just staying...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Countywide for now.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah. No. No. I understand. On the restrooms are
we gonna talk about the playground equipment also?
CHAIR HOKAMA: We.. .you can hit the playground.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Both? Okay. Okay. I would like for clarification, because I
know there’s a lot of people out there in the television land and others that are saying,
what’s a three-unit? What’s a five-unit? What’s a ten-unit trailer? I think I
understand it, but can you explain to the public what a three-unit trailer is, what a
five-unit trailer is, what a ten-unit trailer is? So that people understand what you are
talking about?.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: If you don’t mind, Mr. Chair?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Oh. Go ahead.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Mr. Victorino, when I.. .we’re talking the restroom trailers and
by units, units meaning a restroom. So three restrooms, three units. You have two
regular units and one ADA compliant.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Same as the five-unit, five-restroom trailer. You would have, I believe
it’s four regular units and one ADA unit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And the ten-unit?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
ten-unit.

Ten-unit?

I haven’t seen the ten unit yet.

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: But I would assume you would have multiple ADAs compared to just
one in the three-and-the-five-unit trailers. The ten-unit, I would assume will be a lot
larger as well, than our five-unit. About twice the size, I’m guessing. So current, I
would say a minimum of two ADAs on that ten-unit. But currently, all we have
currently on Maui County is a three-unit and a five-unit trailers.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Trailers at that point?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes. And the ADA compliancy, there is a... actually a ramp that is
attached to the side of the walls that drop down and make it ADA complaint and
accessible.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. And so but your plan is to be a little flexible
as far as in future ordering whether you gonna go with five, three, or even ten, if that’s
necessary? That’s what you’re kinda saying this money’s here. You had ten times 75
so 750,000. Those are what, all five, three, or a multiple?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Mr. Victorino, those are multiples of three’s and five units.
Kinda mix... a mixed bag.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So the three’s costing

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: No ten units. There were no ten units.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah, Okay. Got that. But the three’s and the five’s cost
the same, 75,000 each?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No. No. There are different price points on that I believe. Looks like
the 60,000 is for the small unit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Small meaning the three unit.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And the medium unit is about 80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So you averaging out around 75,000.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: We just average it out by.. .ten
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --and putting it there.
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COUNCILMEM3ER VICTORINO: Okay. And actually if you average it out, it’s more like, you
know, Depending on how many you order. Yeah? Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I got it. Going to the playground equipment, Countywide.
Is there a priority list on which playgrounds will be getting equipment replacement?
Because I notice that, here in Wailuku, Wailuku Elementary, most of that is gone.
Wailuku Heights, and we had paid. The association had bought new equipment and
then everything was removed because of some other unsafe without the association
ever being consulted and saying would you be willing to help redo those broken
So they’re not too happy, that association ‘cause, Mr. Chair, our
equipment?
association paid for it. And then it was removed. And that was... that angered a lot of
the community So I’ve been asked to ask that question, when? And if we can, we
willing to put some money in. ‘Cause we’ve always had that option. And Countywide
Beautiful trailers, I mean, I’m talking about
which. how’s your priority set?
Countywide.
. .

MR. BAZ: I apologize.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. No, no, here’s the trailers.
moment, everyone can look at the trailers. It’s okay.

If you want to take a

MR. BAZ: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know.
MR. BAZ: So. Mr. Chair, there was a question about the
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: The wheels.
MR. BAZ: --the wheels.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. BAZ: So if you 11 look at this picture here, the wheels are hidden within the trailer.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I see.
MR. BAZ: So that’s why they’re going up and down hydraulically.
look.. .yes, a trailer. Yeah. Like DSA standards.

And it can.. .so it still

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Baz, for those visuals. That helped.
And is that a three-stall or a five-stall?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? That’s a three stall right there.

-
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So that’s your ADA stall with the ramp that’s attached to the side.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: At the end. Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And the other two units are to the far right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: So all of that you’re showing us now, is really three stalls?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: That’s your exact. That’s our small, three-stall system right there.
COUNCILMEM3ER VICTORINO:
five- stalls?

That’s.. .yeah,

And you don’t have a picture of the

MR. BUENCONSEJO: No.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Just asking. Just wanted to know. Okay. That’s
great. I think now the public and us have a good picture of what w&re referring to.
Going back to the playground equipment, I apologize.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Member Victorino, so that handout that was just passed out
as the meeting started, with the park systems handout, the last page shows the
priority of playgrounds.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Which one, the big one or the small sheet?
MR BUENCONSEJO: Small sheet.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Small sheet? Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Small sheet, last page. Countywide playgrounds under park systems,
it kinda has the breakdown of where we’re at with the playgrounds and the priority
based on the district.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Thank you, I did not see that page and I apologize
for not going that far back. So we see 2017, what your priorities are. And then you
look at 18 to 22 I guess then that’s what would coming forward in the future years,
right?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Okay. Okay. I can report back to the association that
we’re looking at future years. But I would like you to look into the matter of if the
associations would contribute, because, being that it is a family park in our area, and
we have in the past and continue to bring forward, we willing to put some money
where our mouth is and donate to get that park up to., .put hack playing equipment
-
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‘cause we have none now. It’s been all removed. And we’d like to see that done. And
maybe when you get one of the small three-trailer, take in one of those three big
trailers up there too because we don’t have anything, no... in fact we have sewerline
there so we could eventually one day connect, We could build restrooms and connect.
But anyhow that’s another conversation. I don’t want to go there. But thank you for
that clarification and I appreciate your... Mr. Baz’s visuals. I think now a picture’s
worth a thousand words. I think we got it. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE:
Crivello?

Members, other questions on the playground equipment?

Ms.

COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you. So would you be able to provide a list of all your
playgrounds for Fiscal ‘17?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Ms. Crivello, list of all playgrounds? Or just the proposed?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Yeah. Proposed.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. Same page. The last page has the proposed playground repairs
or fixes that well be redoing.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: I don’t have it. Oh, I do have it. Okay. Okay. Thank you.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Mr. Guzman, any questions on the playground equipment?
Mr. Guzman, questions on the playground equipment?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: Oh no.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: I do not
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair. And thank you for the list, Department.
And I just noticed that for West Maui there’s one, I guess you have a generalized
And yet my... this district has the most park
Countywide improvement item.
assessment fees of all. And we have the least amount of projects being proposed. On
this list, the last three are all West Maui, and it looks like they’re being pushed over to
next budget year. Can these be... can park assessments fees be utilized for these three
projects or no? Item’s eight, nine, and ten, are all West Maui and I have $4.4 million
in park assessment fees.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?

-
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Member Cochran, yes, so I was just told that it could be used for park
assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. If there’s a way that we can, I guess, utilize the fees
in order to fund these projects. If it’s a lack of, I guess, manpower, or I guess timing
of.. .1 mean there’s ten projects you want to accomplish and perhaps you thought you
could only do the seven this year? Is that why you folks put the three in West Maui
for the following year?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
actually

Chair,

It was just based on the request, the funding request.

I

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --was looking into it already with some of the parks system’s money
that we may have had if we potentially use it as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: But the other thing I kind of want to make note is, you know, is a lot
of these things, even the playgrounds here, we gotta reassess. The playgrounds aren’t
cheap. As you can see buy a whole new structure and building one out, say like
Keopuolani had... .or has, you’re looking well over a quarter million dollars and
upwards for something of that magnitude. And again, really utilizing the park if we’re
gonna put in the money, is making sure it’s a true community park and everyone will
be able to use it, and not more so, a pocket park. To that extent put up, you know,
you do a playground, but for those big price tag playgrounds where we’re going over a
quarter million dollars, you know, the way the Department, or at least we’ve been
trying to look at it is, is it worth that quarter million or almost half a million dollars,
say for Waiale, to put that kind of magnitude of a playground there compared to a
smaller one and use those bigger monies for something like say Lahaina Rec Center
One or rebuilding of Keopuolani or Central Regional? You know, something where it’s
a true, where people are gonna go there to enjoy the park, not it’s somebody’s
backyard. You know, have a smaller scope playground in that area. So looking into
those aspects as well with these monies, but the shade structure, yes, that’s
something that we can definitely look into.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Excellent.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: And would that be also we were mentioning about the pooi
structures at the swimming pool, Lahaina Aquatic Center or the coverage.., shade
-
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coverage over the bleachers? Is that a whole different baligame from playgrounds?
Because I think it was noted we could not utilize it for that one?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair. I believe we.. .there was a discussion. We possibly could use
that monies. But we do also have that in our West system’s park system’s money.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So well have that in there as well.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: As we get to that point.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Very good. Thank you very much. Chair, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Couch?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Mr. Chair. And thank you, Mr. Director, for giving
us this list. So looking at your priority, is that... is your intent to put an RFP out there
and go do it or have maintenance, your BMR guys put in the playgrounds or the shade
structures?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO, Chair. This would have to be contracted out.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Contracted out?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:

.

.

,(inaudible).,.

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: So

--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: --the first ones for FY 2017 one through six, can all be,,,or
anticipated being done simultaneously?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, potentially, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: I would say definitely if... probably do a.. .if we were to get different
bids from different contractors. But if it happens to be the same person, no. Just
because of the scope, Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: But ideally yes, that’s the plan.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And if there is a.. .there is a priority list it looks like
here. Just curious how the shade structure at Kalama Park got below South Maui
Community Park only because we’ve been looking for one at Kalama Park for years.
So I would think that would have a higher priority.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Than South Maui Community Park.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I mean we can easily
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I wasn’t sure.

==

.(inaudibte)...

.

MR. BUENCONSEJO: --flip four to three but yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah,
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So as far as how that was put on the list,,,
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: In case you have to go one by one.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. So we can make note that Kalama Park would be the

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you, Chair.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --priority three instead of priority four.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: You can request for us to make that adjustment in priority ourselves.
Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Nothing, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White? Questions?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No further questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, sir?
-
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COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No further questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No, No further questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I apologize, you know, the Members may have asked this but shade
structure, what are we talking about? Open, you know. covered roof with no walls
type of structure?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, no. Usually those shade structures.. .so just say four corners.
Four poles.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
With a canopy structure kinda covering the perimeter of the
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
playground. And the playground structure itself would be under the shaded canopy.
So...
CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean I’m just trying to figure out the logic, right? We tell our kids to go
outside and play and yet, we going build one structure for who?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
Chair, I think some of that, just to answer that, some of the
equipment gets really hot. Especially in areas in West Maui, South Maui, that those
slides, you better hurry up and get off that slide once you get out it. So it does get a
little hot so, Mr. Baz has an image
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --of something similar that you were looking at.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So all the smart kids go early in the day or late in the evening.
goes midday, the smart kids.

Nobody

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: The slide’s not under the cover.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. I saw that. Depending on which way the sun is at the time of
day. But, you know, for the most part, it does for certain areas, it gets hot. And you
can see the playgrounds aren’t used because of that heat. So that just gives an option
to, you know, again get the kids out and go do their thing. And try and provide some
kind of shading.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So every park has a different shade structure?

-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: It would be based on the size of the playground. Currently there isn’t
much shading structures out there. But ideally every park would have a different
diameter because of the size of the park.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Only because we noticed the range from 25,000 for a shade
structure at one site up to 175,000 for a shade structure at another site. That’s a
$150,000 difference for one shade structure.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes. We noticed that as well. And yeah. Realistically it’s
definitely, you know, even though Honokowal Park for example, on number nine on
there is at 25,000. That’s a real smaller playground; however, yes the differential in
that 175 to that
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
needed.

-the Department is aware of that there may be some adjustments

CHAIR HOKAMA: And the main reason you prefer to go to a third-party contractor, for this
type of work instead of inhouse, is what your,.. .what is your main driver, Director,
would be?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, for some of that, obviously is just the right skills, the skill set
needed to bring up that structure. I.. .for some of these.., there are some, don’t get me
wrong, our staff is capable of doing it. But for liability and warranties, you know, the
Department would choose to go outside just to make sure that it’s... it is what we get
and there’s no concerns about any kind of integrity of the structure. And then again,
as well is, you know, manpower wise, you know, to take off, say, our BMRs would be
the only ones capable of operating that. With only one to two BMRs in a district, the
timeframe to get that up, we wouldn’t have the manpower as well to even make that
happen.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Cause man, I’ve seen a lot of unauthorized buildings pop up in
Public Works and Parks through the years from employees, that was never a County
CIP through Council. So I’m just wondering.. .we have the capability.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, the Department again acknowledges that. We just want to
keep away from that kind of work happening again. And not saying we don’t have the
capability to our skilled guys that are out there. But I think just the point of.. .for
warranties and risk management for our sake, we’d like to go contract on that. And
again, holding up manpower for daily use, that’ll probably be the best option.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. No, no, I just want bad practices to end. Any other questions in
Countywide playgrounds, Members, at this time? Having none,. let’s move forward.
Let’s move to Hana. Okay, Mr. Director, I think your first East Maui request to us is a
half... 50,.. 50,000 for Hana Civic.
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, thank you, Chair. This is to get some planning done for the
existing old Hana School that currently serves the function as our Civic Center, over at
Hana Community. Currently as you all know, it is fairly old.. .very old, overcrowded
There are also
and need of substantial maintenance, repairs, and upgrades.
accessibility and parking issues. A replacement facility would be a more economically
sound investment into the future. But currently, with the user groups there, they are
looking for any kind of maintenance and upgrades to that facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. The whole old school site is owned under the County jurisdiction?
Is that our land, Director? Have we retained... ‘cause a lot of the old school lands were
County lands originally. So is this County of Maui land?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I believe it was EO’d to the County. And I can definitely
confirm that and get back to you. But our understanding was it was EO’d to the
County with that whole area.
CHAIR HOKAMA: If it was EO’d then normally the State has parameters of permitted uses
that we are.. .we follow. So is there restrictions we should be aware of, Director, under
the EO?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, not that we know of at this time, as far as for the maintenance
issues of that facility.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Have you already secured some type of third-party vendor for your
planning purposes, Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, no, not yet.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
have to address?

This facility has ADA issues that you definitely know you gonna

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes. There is.. .yes, that’s one of numerous issues that we’re
gonna have to address, as well. Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: What is the ability of the other agencies that use our property to help pay
for certain parts of the funding?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I think that was part of what the funding would be. And also,
you know, working with CDBG monies as well. There are a bunch of user groups in
that facility. And, you know, they were proposing a. what is it, a commercial kitchen
in one of those areas. And that’s what kind of opened up the doors to the numerous
upgrades needed for that facility to make that happen. So we are working with them
as well as to, you know, or they are working to secure monies as well to try and make
that up to par. But as we’re all aware yeah, that, that definitely is in need of a facelift.
. .

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay, so all the buildings of the old school is under the County’s
jurisdiction?
-j
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: And that’s all under your Department currently, Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: All those buildings, not... no other Department shares responsibility, just
Parks?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, we have other Departments in the building; however, yes.
main.. .we are the responsible party for that area.

The

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Mr. White? Questions for this project?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: So the purpose is to rehabilitate as opposed to replacing?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Sorry, as far as replacing the Center? Sorry.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah, You’re asking just for

--

MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: --planning, but it’s $50,000 doesn’t get us a whole lot of.. .probably not
much more than a master plan of what you wanna try to accomplish. But what is the
end goal?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, the design money would come in the next fiscal. This is
definitely just to kind of get the ball rolling. And getting the... again, yeah, master
planning aspect of it. Meet with the user groups. See what’s... needs to be done there,
what’s been neglected, or what they like see in the future. And then go into the
conceptual design after that, come next year. But the regional money is just to go and
start that master planning part of it.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And the intent is to replace all the square footage?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, ideally that would be a definite long-term intent with that
facility being the way it is. Feasibility-wise, I guess we’ll see, well cross that bridge
and this body will decide if that’s something that, you know, when it comes down to
funding, that we want to see move forward.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: And do you know what the total square footage on both parcels is at
this point?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I’ve just pulled up.. .I’ve pulled up one and looks like it’s at least 12, no,
oh my gosh, it’s more like maybe 20,000 square feet. I’m not sure we’re gonna...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. Chair, we’d have to.. .I’d have to get back to you on the actual
square footage and
--

VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Well... I.. .you don’t need to do that. I can...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --what may have been added on, on top of that too.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: I can add it up off of the RPT map. But that’s a... the future cost might
be a little bit off. This is a pretty big structure.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes, It’s fairly long.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Yeah.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Guzman, questions, sir? Mr. Victorino?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. No questions, thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA’ Okay. Ms. Cochran, any questions on this project?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Yeah, Thank you, Chair. And.. .1 was just... my last visit to
Hana, I took pictures of the building actually. So I was looking at photos and showing
Mr. Couch how.. .1 mean termite eaten, It’s also near the shore, you can’t see the
ocean but the salt water is corroding, the wood there looks all fluffy like how you see
at old harbor piers and stuff. The ADA ramp has holes. I mean God forbid anybody
go through that. So, you know, I would have liked to seen more done quicker in this
fiscal rather than just putting 50,000 to it, ‘vause I think it’s been in dire need for
many, many years. And to even let it go another year, we may run into some issues.
Windows and jealousies and things are just falling apart. I mean there’s just nothing
anybody can really do. But just the shear age and, you know, of it. So and you’re
looking at land acquisition, where it’s such a tight close-quartered area, where about
were you looking to purchase to expand here?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, The expansion part of it, again, will come in the future if we
can.. finding the land, right?
.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: We are currently working with Hana Ranch due to the that whole
Helene Hall right of entry. And Member Carroll and I met with them a couple weeks
ago, and that is definitely, it’s coming your way, to this body, to see. And actually
Hana Ranch wants to donate that whole, Ill call it, the head of that whole area, where
that.. .the. ,from one from Hana Bay rapping around to the hotel, so that whole piece
of land will be donated. Now I don’t know if that’s any room to build an extension on
that, but they do want to sign that over to the County, as Parks property, that whole
piece which would help us as far as with easements and everything for the current
septic system that we’re gonna be running in Helene Hall. But yeah... that is part of
that would be., .I’m assuming that any leftover piece of land in that area, was Hana
Ranches anyway. But totally speculation. So if there is any piece that is left, that
would be a way to expand in the future, if that was their property. And Mr. Carroll
could probably enlighten you folks more as far as the area or what that actual area is
called.
.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN:
‘Cause I

Walt, you’re talking about lands around Helene Hall?

-

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --this is where Dawn Lono’s housed right, this Hana Civic
Center that we’re talking about?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chalr, I have no idea where Dawn Lono lives.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right? Isn’t.. .that’s what I’m talking about.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Helene Hall and the Civic

—

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Office.. .yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --Center is two different places.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Two different places.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Her office or home, yeah. Her office is...
COUNCILMEM3ER COCHRAN: Right. That’s why I’m speaking about where Dawn Lono’s
housed, Hale Hulu Mamo is next door, that area. So I’m trying to picture where we’re
gonna... land acquisition was gonna occur. But Director was, I think, talking about
Helene Hall section down by the pier?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah. That’s where we talking about, yeah?
34
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Sorry. Just.. .that’s just for the land acquisition with Hana Ranch
would be from that Helene Hall area. We’re talking about the Community Center
which is on top of the hill
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Oh. Okay. But that’s in your project description for this
project. It says Planning and Land Acquisition for
--

MR. BUENCONSEJO: For.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: -Hana Civic Center.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: For expansion of Civic Center. Yeah. Sorry, I kinda. .1 threw in that
part that we’re working with Hana Ranch, with acquiring some of that land.
.

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: That could be already part of that Hana Civic land that we may try to
inquire.., acquire.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. And that area I know is where people with... trying to
discourage them from walking down around the point to that red sand beach. So if
they’re gonna give us whatever this land, may come with some liability issues, So not
to forget that people traverse it for certain reason... risky reasons. But anyways, thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: No. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So. You have no issues with SHPDA and what you want to do at the Civic
Center site? ‘Cause to me that’s your biggest State agency hurdle is State Historic
Preservation. So, any comments?
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So part of this first phase, I guess that we’re looking at
with the $50,000 would be exploring all of those different things in more detail. And I
think looking at kind of touching back on the land acquisition question, you know,
there’s a lot that’s on that site currently. There’s already different parking issues at
different points in time, or having where the youth center is located and having that,
you know, kind of the main driveway that goes through there. And so as we go
through that process of meeting with all those different groups and trying to
collectively put together a master plan for what are the future needs of the community
as it relates to the needs that are currently being met at that center, it’s most likely to
be identified that we can’t continue to fit everything in that same location. And so
-
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that’s where the potential for us to identify, you know, we need x amount of more
space in order to meet these future needs, you know, that are, again the same needs
we’re meeting right now in this area. But going into more detail with any, you know,
permitting, historic land issues, all that type of stuff would get built into this first
phase of kind of exploring what a new facility would need to look like.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Have you folks checked with Hana Ranch and see if maybe there’s
opportunities for us to just go and use a module or a 4or8-plex type of unit at the old
Hotel Hana area for administrative needs?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, no not currently to that, pertaining to that particular question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I just thought about it because with their type of zoning, you know, I’m
sure there’s,. .they have broader permitted use parameters that maybe some of the
things you would like to do is already allowed in their zoning that we can just maybe
lease space from them. Okay, any other questions, Members, on Hana Civic? If not,
let’s go to Helene Hall project, please. Half a million dollars.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, so this is the existing cesspools that were converted and have
failed and require the... basically the whole new structure of that system. The Hana
community abundantly does not want the absorption field in the location, in that
grassy area across from the hall, which it.. .which prompted the communication with
Hana Ranch and getting. originally the conversation was to get right of entries or
easements along that area. And within that conversation, it became to the point of a
possible acquiring of land through that process.
.

.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So, Chair, just to clarify as well, we do have the plans.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So does it still make sense for us to keep Helene Hall? Or should we go to
a new site?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, that’s a great question.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I don’t need another system failure.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Yeah. No. That’s a great question. Nothing.. .1 mean that you’d.. .1
guess this body would have to discuss. The current system that we did finally get
engineered for though, however, would prevent all the concerns that the community
had during the meeting. So we just recently finished off the plans with that. And this
$500,000 is what the cost of the engineering to pump that back up to Hana Ballpark,
and the leach field would be put up at that current location where there is a leach field
already for the Hana restrooms,
CHAIR HOKAMA: Doesn’t sound.. .the. ..I don’t really like this project. Mr. White, questions?
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Are there any other options? I... I’m.. .you know, it states that the
community doesn’t want the absorption field across the street in the park. And I
understand that, but are they any more receptive to having it in the Hana Ballpark?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, to my understanding, I didn’t go to that last one that they
currently had up in Hana. I went to the original one and again, the community
definitely did not want anything near obviously where Helene Hall is, across the street
in that park. To my understanding at that meeting, when the plans were proposed,
and everyone laid out the design, no one came with any concerns at Hana Ballpark to
our planning and development team and with the engineer. There was a lot of
concerns and that was on the Nahiku Community Center meeting as well during that
time. So again the focus was on that; however, there were plans, everything was
drawn out and currently, to our knowledge, we haven’t gotten any questions or any
kind of concerns regarding this current system which is the only other feasible way,
unless as Mr. Hokama mentioned, you know, the shutdown of it. The other option is a
So the only other last... this is the
sewer plant which wouldn’t happen either.
last... basically the last thing to do is the cesspool, sorry septic with the leach field
going back up, pumping it back up to Hana Ballpark field.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: What is the currently cost of pumping?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Currently per year, that we have the Porta Potties that coming, we’re
spending about $75,000 just on pumping for that restroom alone. Nothing to do with
else with the other ballpark. Strictly Helene Hall restrooms and the number of people
that go through there, that’s our current, it’s between.. .yes, yeah, close to $70,000.
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: How much revs you bring in from that site? Do you... are you assessing
the tour companies a fee to utilize the County’s facilities?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, there is no fee currently. The only
they rent the hail, and that’s not being done by our tour
And the concession stand that is there as well, that little
we have there. But to answer your question, there is no
that area.

revenue coming in is when
buses and everything else.
restaurant concession that
fee for anybody going into

CHAIR HOKAMA: But it is being utilized by those entities?
MR. BUENCONSEJO:
They... that was
coming out with
is definitely, you
there.

Oh, 100 percent. That’s a big concern with the community as well.
a community outcry as far as, you know, these guys coming in,
rubbish and all the users coming into the waters. So the community
know, not in support of that as well, meaning the tourism coming in

-_,

-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
April 11, 2016

CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Other questions on this project, Members, regarding Helene Hail?
Ms. Cochran?
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Thank you, Chair, And so the aerobic treatment system,
this is the monies are gonna go to help upgrade that and to just keep the system, I
guess, as is? But...
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEM3ER COCHRAN: Is that what?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No, that system does... is not wanted there. They are.. .the aerobic
treatment system... that still has the process of leaking in, because it’s still a cesspool
area. So that... this whole system will be redone into a septic with a leach field
pumping it all the way back up to Hana Ballpark. The current system
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --is not what the community wants. The current system needs to be
replaced. That is not what they’re looking for. So this is a total new system with the
current plans of engineering plans and everything else.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Okay. Right. Okay. Yeah... and, Chair, I like your thinking
that perhaps movement of this elsewhere, could be a better idea.
CHAIR HOKAMA: I’m just seeing it being more costly down the road.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Every year, it’s gonna cost us more money for something that ain’t gonna
bring us anything back.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: That’s right. So, I would entertain
CHAIR HOKAMA: And this is

--

COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: --that thought of yours.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --the district with the lowest revenue generation.
COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: Right. But...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER COCHRAN: But anyway. So, yeah. This is a very controversial issue
there in that little community. And so hopefully we can find a solution to this one.
But thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. Couch? Ms. Crivello? Anything else. Mr. White on this?
VICE-CHAIR WHITE: No. Thank

you.

Chair.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Guzman, any questions? Thank you very much. Hana-Keanae-Kailua
Parks System request for 310,000.
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So this is the first of our series of park systems. You’ll
find the priority listing of projects on the second page of the attachment that was
provided. You’ll see there’s a listing of three projects, priority projects on here. And if
there’s any questions.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for that. Mr. Couch, any questions at this time, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: No.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms. Crivello?
Just to ask of the monies that was appropriated in
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO:
Fiscal ‘16. How much utilized for specific projects or is it already used for certain
projects, supplemental? Of the 446,250 from-CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: --FY ‘16,
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So the monies that have been in the current Fiscal Year
allocated to the different park systems are all dedicated towards different projects.
They may not all be encumbered yet, but there’s definitely plans and that’s something
that we didn’t have included in here. But we can put together, kind of an update of
the completed projects. I think this is now our third fiscal year that we’ve been
working in this kind of a park systems capacity. So we can provide that updated
listing of completed and the current ongoing projects in each of the district areas.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: So for Hana, Keanae, and Kailua Parks System, there’s
already projects already in progress?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER CRIVELLO: Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Mr. White?

-
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VICE-CHAIR WHITE: Thank you, Chair. Yeah. I appreciate Ms. Crivello’s question, and
thank you for offering to provide us a list of the projects that are currently going,
because, as you know, our biggest challenge is if we give you the money, are you
gonna be able to spend it? And the, so far, the Hana-Keanae-Kailua area, of the
446,000 we gave you last year, only.. .well, the, 426,000 remain. So it would be
helpful to us if we could get a sense of where you are and, you know, whether you’re
gonna be able to get all these projects done and utilize the cash by the end of, not this
fiscal year, but by December. So, thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Guzman, sir?
COUNCILMEMBER GUZMAN: No, I’m...
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Is one of your current projects for this year, Hana Bay
showers? Or is that for your upcoming request? Director?
MS. SAVAGE: That would be in the upcoming request, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So that is not part of the 16. What did you... so what projects did
you folks expend monies on this year for? And are those projects.. .it’s part of
Mr. White’s questioning too... so anything that has been completed of what you’ve
expended so far? Or is that all work in progress, projects in progress?
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. There was a series of projects that we’ve been working on,
a series of fencing project. In Hana, there was some work at Paani Mai, as well as the
Hana ballfields. Again, we didn’t bring that detailed breakdown listing of completed
projects with us, but that is something that we can provide for each of the park
system district areas.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Where are you with the pavilion for Hana, that project please? We
gave you some design monies. Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, the current pavilion, they’ve.. .we started a process. But I’d
have to definitely get back to you as far as the scope of where we’re at with the design.
You know, but we are.. .we’ve definitely are.. .1 know that I’ve heard discussions at
meetings, that we are starting that process. And to add onto Ms. Savage’s, as far as
other things going on in Hana, the fencing was a big one, the restrooms as well.
Finishing up that, again, part of the funding on different subject code. But there’s a
lot of, again getting back to just getting that... everybody back up to par. In speaking
with the departments as far that all the money will be and should be encumbered as
far as contractual. There’s are a lot of contracts out there currently, that are not
reflected to what you folks are seeing. And I can get back to you again, on the pavilion
work, of where we’re at with the pavilion.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Okay. And get us.. .help us understand the scope of this project
please. ‘Cause I wanna know if part of your discussions on new pavilion is wide
enough to even think about replacing Helene Hall.
-
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MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair. Thank you, Chair. I.. .just based off thinking of what I see, I
don’t believe that it’ll be, I think that’s the ocean side. So there’s a lot of other issues
as far as moving Helene Hail to that particular area. I know a lot of the work at
Helene Hall as well, was all contingent upon where we go with this whole cesspool
system. So a lot of that
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: I understand.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --was pushed back due to delay of that. You know, I will also just
throw in there from the community aspect, you know, I know Helene Hail is definitely
a community gathering place with the pavilion and everything else so, you know, we
just want to get that up to par. But again, everything in Hana from the ocean, makai
side of that... anything to do around Hana Bay, everything is all contingent upon where
we’re going with this whole cesspool or septic system, finding a solution for that. Once
that. now that we have a solution is where I think now we can start planning all the
upgrades needed or expansions needed as well.
.

.

CHAIR HOKAMA: Is part of this pavilion project also gonna include new showers and
whatnot facilities, Director, currently?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I believe we’ll be adding a couple shower heads. But it’s more
just to get that platform and the drainage system for that up to par and up to code. I
was gonna say that, you know, so just a cleanup of that. There’s a lot of shower
systems throughout Maui County.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I bring that one up yeah? Because my concern is the dry wells. And
right now I have no confidence in Health Department or EPA with their flexibility in
how they do rulings on how this might impact this County. ‘Cause we’re already in
certain legal situations that I don’t know how we’re gonna look at dry wells especially
if it’s right by the ocean. So for me, it’s a potential concern, not yet, Director. But
since we are aware of other matters before us in other Committees under confidential
parameters, we are aware of certain challenges. So we just share that with you that
we are aware of factors that may impact the certain projects. With that, I’m gonna ask
Mr. Victorino, we are under Helene Hail, Hana East Maui project CIP, so if you have a
question, we are happy to help you present it?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: No. I think I’ve listened while I was on my call. Watching
what was happening here, And I believe, Mr. Chair, that Helene Hall and the
necessary improvements, you know, there’s no question, it’s a very heavily used area
for that community and as well as the public at large so. I’m good with this. Thank
you, Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Okay. If there’s no further questions on this project, let’s
move to South Maui. Members, we are not gonna finish this component of review for
today, we all know that. So we... Staff is gonna reschedule. More than likely we are
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gonna work with the Department and finish this up on one of the nights we have an
opening. Everything is scheduled
--

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: I didn’t mean to laugh, Chair, but.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --not much pukas for us to slot things. So just know we are gonna redo
the review and it’s gonna take time. Ms. Yoshimura?
MS. YOSHIMURA: Mr. Chair, the Parks Department is available on Wednesday, April 20th, at
six o’clock.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, we’ll slot them in at that component for now so they can also plan.
We know that they need to make their arrangements for the final, finishing up the
final review of their CIP requests. So thank you for that. Director? Deputy? Let’s go
talk about South Maui Community Park.
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Chair, Thank you, Chair. This funding request is for the design and
construction of additional master plan ballfields and soccer fields over at the South
Maui Community Park.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. From the funds we’ve already given you, you’ve encumbered close
to, pretty much a million dollars; bond funds, general funds, lapped funds, lapsed
bond funds. Can you tell us the status of your use of all these monies, please?
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So kind of an overview update on the South Maui
Community Park and where we’re at with that. The Phase had been broken down
into A and B. Phase A was the completion of the soccer field, playground, and the
softball field. Phase 1-B is the recreation center. And that is a project that we are
finishing up the design or the... completing the design for the construction documents.
And then that will be going out to bid. That money I believe had been... and Budget
Chair may have the specific information, but I believe it was appropriated in Fiscal
Year ‘16, it might have been ‘15 even. But then we were waiting to come back after we
have the opening from the actual construction documents, to be able to present a
specific number for this body to allocate for construction of the gymnasium. These
monies here would be moving into Phase 2 and doing the master planning. And part
of the reason the Department would like to push forward with this design as well as
completing the gymnasium simultaneously is because we’re working to fulfill a past
need. These aren’t future needs that we’re meeting. We’re meeting existing needs that
were identified a dozen or so, if not more than that years ago. And I know at the time,
when the master plan was initially done, the community wanted to see things, you
know, everything moved forward at the same time. Plan it all out and then build it out
in phases so that it would hopefully be actualized a little bit sooner, and so, from a
Department perspective, we see the need to really move forward and get the rest of this
facility, or at least the next phases master planned and designed so that we... or not
master planned, excuse me, just designed so that we can move into continuing to
create more space for the need that’s already existed for many years in this area.
Thank you.
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CHAIR HOKAMA: So, we understand this project in.. .or maybe a broader perspective. Tell
us the status of the gym. Is... ‘cause for me this is., .for me this is a 15-year project for
me. Okay? I think my first year of Budget, being Budget Chair in 2000.. .was it 2000,
2001? I introduced a resolution to move this gym forward. And Mr. Nishiki decided to
cosponsor with me. So this is something I’ve been following for 15 years. What is our
status of this gym?

MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair? Thank you, Chair. I’m happy to say, actually that we finally
got the design complete. So we have the conceptual design complete. And it was
supposed to have been sent out for bid. So we can go ahead and get that; however I
believe that within this next week or two, that process will finally happen and be sent
out. So again, and at that point in time, you know, when we get that out for bid, and
get a price tag on there, well come in front this body and go for a budget amendment,
but the gym is complete. I think well all be happy of where it looks, and well do a
presentation at that time with the 3-D rendering and with color schemes and
everything that will be part of that gym. But yes, the 15 years, it’s finally coming to
forefront, and itll be something that South Maui community will be very proud of.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Are we pretty much within project... budget projection?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, I’m not sure what the budget was proposed 15 years ago, or
what it is recently. But I think we’re somewhere, again, ballpark, I can see being
above it, but somewhere between that 17 and $20 million mark.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Ueoka, when we put out RfPs or bid requests for our projects, is that
public information of who bids and how much they bid?
MR. UEOKA: Chair, I believe so. Yes.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So it wouldn’t be a problem for us to mention the name of the contractors
and the pricing if they trying to gouge us then? ‘Cause I don’t have a problem making
it known to the public of the challenges we trying to deal with to provide for public
facilities.
MR. UEOKA: No, I don’t believe so. We can double check with purchasing, but I’m not
aware on any restriction on releasing the public bids, the names and the amounts.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Director, are you having any problem with contractors and
finishing projects for your Department, whether they be punch lists or other
requirements and not fulfilling their obligations as a contractor to the County of Maui
Parks Department?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair, yes. We’ve had occasions where we’ve had a conflict. However,
we’re working with Corporation Counsel, and I think the culture is slowly shifting now
that we’re actually taking the right necessary steps to make them accountable for their
actions.
‘+3
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CHAIR HOKAMA: Well, I don’t have a problem with you sharing that with Council and let us
decide if we want to debar a company from doing business with this County. ‘Cause I
don’t have a problem putting them on the list and getting them unable to bid on a
County Project for five consecutive years.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: No, Chair. The Department appreciates that and well definitely keep
you abreast to any situations we have.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah, well be happy to let licensing board know of how contactors
operate in this County. So back to your park, your Central Maui Community Park.
Mr. Couch, your...this is...should be one of your nice projects, sir. You have questions
on your project?
COUNCILMEM3ER COUCH: South Maui Community Park?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, sir.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. So of the 650,000 is to design and construct additional
halifields, which.. which ones? I mean there’s a bunch left to do.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair. Thank you, Chair. Member Couch. The idea right now is the
softballs, finish up the softball and the soccer and make our way towards Makena.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: South.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: And then south, sorry. I forgot my sense of direction there. Heading
back south and eventually putting up the baseball and I believe the last possible
phase might have even.., tennis courts. But this immediate thing would be for the
second softball field and a soccer.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. If you do the soccer field, you gonna make it a bit bigger
than the one you have on top? The one on top just barely... and I don’t know that it
really meets regulation. Unfortunately for soccer fields, the regulations are flexible.
Minimum, I think, 50 yards wide and 100 yards long, and then the maximum is
100 yards wide and a 120 yards long. So you have a lot of room to play with. But this
one apparently barely meets the minimum. Or it’s just under the minimum and
there’s very little room for spectators, et cetera. That’s caused reasons for the high
schools not to be able to play there.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
Chair. That’s what this is for as well. Getting a
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair. Thank
fields
we
can put or what may need to be say, shrunken to
real scope of what size
make accommodations for the larger sized field. So ideally we don’t... I can’t tell you
you,
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exactly right now if it’s gonna be that full regulation size. But that’s what this
planning will be is to see what we can fit in there and how we can maneuver it. Ideally
what we’d like to see as we move forward in the future. is putting up fields, larger
fields that can be multi-use, So not just strictly for soccer. Not just strictly for, you
know, or football in a sense. Softball because of the fencing but having the fields big
enough where and they can also be moved to where the maintenance of the field. So
not to wear and tear in that same spot, it’s dirt, you know. So things like that but this
is what we’re gonna go with this monies and go to planning for.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. And in your discussion of future, I didn’t hear anything
about the amphitheatres. Is that still in the plans?
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Chair? It’s on the.. .it was on the original master plan yes. As far as
where we head with the amphitheatre, I think right now the Department’s push is just
to get those fields.. .the gym first. I mean
--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yes
MR. BUENCONSEJO: --m being priority. Get those fields, you know, layered out through
that and again, our base, you know... with that being said is a baseyard. You know,
baseyard for the Department to move to if we’re gonna expand that park to the scope
that it should be. And the amphitheater again, it is in there. As far as our planning
on it, we haven’t planned on the amphitheater as of yet. It hasn’t been a point of topic
yet.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Well, he mentioned baseyard, that’s two more down. I
have some comments about that. It’s kinda involved in this one or do you want to
wait till we get?
CHAIR HOKAMA: No, you can bring the baseyard question now since it’s

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --pretty much tied in and

--

COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Yeah.
CHAIR HOKAMA: --it’ll save us time later.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Regarding the baseyard, you heard the testimony today.
Because the baseyard does take space and it sounds like potentially it’s gonna take
the amphitheater space, the community’s thought is, you know, we do have land
behind the police station. We have a lot of land back there. A lot of it can’t be used, it
shouldn’t be used because there’s some old native wiliwili back there that’s really,
really nice. So we want to leave that as much as possible. But there’s... should be
plenty of space for a baseyard either back there or... and I’m not sure how much space
we have at the wastewater treatment plant or surrounding the wastewater treatment
-
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plant there. We may have to annex, you know, see if we can acquire some land if we
can’t do it behind the police station. But I think behind the police station might
be.. .we don’t own any.. .there’s a nice big flat area up there. We don’t have to.. .1 mean
we own it, so we don’t’ have to purchase any more land. But I really can’t support
putting the baseyard in that park, because that would take away from recreational
stuff. And the police station is not that far down the way. Have you guys looked at
that? And it is Parks’ land. It was supposed to be the regional park where the police
station is. So I believe you still have control of the rest of that land. So have you
thought, have you had discussions on that?
MR. 3UENCONSEJO: Chair.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Thank you, Chair. Member Couch. As far as the thoughts on that,
no. The proposed site would be where the recycling center is. So that’s where the
baseyard would be. It wouldn’t be part of that park master plan. It wasn’t on the
actual or taking space of actual field space or amphitheatre space. It would be out
towards the.. .oh, in the recycling center is where it actually would be. And again, that
that’s on parks property as well, But the biggest concern again, we.. .1... any baseyard,
the Department will be happy for it. Just realize on the part of mobility and getting
equipment down here. Everything would be trailed in again which is time and
everything else. So having somebody in that particular centralized within the biggest
park in South Maui, is ideal. But again, anything that the Department or this body
will fund, we’re all for it.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: I understand. It was my understanding that where the recycle
center was eventually gonna be either the tennis or the basketball courts, or the
required building, I know you’re SMA requires you to have a building for a youth
center. So I thought that’s what was gonna happen out in that area.
MR. BUENCONSEJO: Chair?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Director?
MR. BUENCONSEJO: So just to kind of go back, you know, and again, that’s something that
we talked about real briefly during our budget, that I brought up and me and Deputy
Director are talking about is we have all these master plannings, but who do we have
that’s containing all these master plans to correlate with everything? So you just
mentioned basketball courts that were supposed to be there. I have a gym that has
four courts in it, basketball courts, along with Kalama Park still that has four courts.
Is that really a need now anymore to have a basketball court in the South Maui
Regional Plan? So those are the concerns, you know, things that as we move forward
as Department is kinda rounding everything up, all these master plans that were all
developed for a particular reasons, and seeing what we have here and kind of
corralling it. So again, those are just things that we’re trying to look at as far as where
we want to go with the future of that master plan and where can we edit it along the
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way and add on things. Like I said, again if the community in that area calls for
something that is more community inducive, that we can use, and realistic, not just to
have it to have it the Department is totally in support of, you know, moving the
baseyard, but ideally that’s where we had originally planned for the baseyard.
Mr. Chair, if we could put a request to the
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH:
Okay.
EAR Committee to look at the... as a... I guess an update of where we are at the South
Maui Community Park, just to... because things do change
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: —as the Directory said.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We have seen that.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Things do change.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER COUCH: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR HOKAMA: We do and so what I will ask the Director, because I thought you raised
good questions, all the Member’s raised some good questions this morning. SMS is
finishing up one assessment for you, right now. Or they should have finished one
three-month, 90-day contract that you guys did for research on the various park
systems in the County. So as we understand Contract C5925, when are you.. .how do
you feel the results of this contract, this survey from SMS may impact your 2017
requests to this Committee? Deputy?
MS. SAVAGE: Thank you, Chair. So this is kind of a interesting dynamic on how all the
different pieces fit together. Ultimately there should be, you know, a planning process
that dictates what are the community needs and why are we prioritizing certain
projects in the order that we are? And this type of a planning process or planning
document isn’t something that exists within the Department. And so we’re.. ,we can’t
just stop everything and say we’re gonna wait until we have, you know, everything
synchronized together and then be able to develop these priorities. We still have to try
to meet the existing needs as well as, you know, with facilities that are as old as they
are and needing immediate repair and maintenance. You know, we’re trying to
identify what are the top priorities, address those issues, but also simultaneously go
through this community needs assessment process so that we can get some in... some
statistically valid information from the broad-based community to then be able to look
at creating, again smart growth action plans in each of the different district areas.
And so this is a process that we’re hoping, I know we discussed these previously in the
Parks Division Operating Budget where we were asking for funds for those smart
growth action plans. But those would essentially answer a lot of the questions that
right now have been coming up about the South Maui area. Because that type of a
document essentially takes all of the different projects in a district, all of the different
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needs in a district, and looks at them collectively instead of just looking at it at one
park at a time. It looks at it within that whole district area. And having that type of a
document, and not just for it being a document, but going through that process as a
Department, means that we have to interface with all of the other Departmental and
State and government agencies that are doing planning in those same type of district
areas. And it allows.., it opens us up to being able to have more collaboration.
Looking at other funding mechanisms, besides just County funds, looking at
partnership opportunities, sponsorship opportunities. And so that’s the direction
we’re trying to move as a Department. But we still have to, we still have to move
forward with projects that we know immediately need attention, and we don’t want to,
you know, not move on any of these other projects until we, you know, complete the
planning. So it’s kind of something where I.. .you know, in a perfect world, which itil
never be, you know, you would have the plan first and then you would move forward
from the plan. And we’re trying to do both of those things simultaneously.
CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. No. I understand. We are appreciative of what we’re hearing
from you. I’m just trying to make the connections since you guys used CIP money to
do an assessment that may or may not impact your projects. I just trying figure out
why you guys using CIP money for this 55,000.
MS. SAVAGE: Chair, so the information from that assessment will directly tie into the
projects that are proposed through the CIP system.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So then you just paroled going up... that’s why you have your numbers
where you prorate it among the seven systems?
MS. SAVAGE: Correct.
CHAIR HOKAMA: The cost of the contract?
MS. SAVAGE:

Correct.

CHAIR HOKAMA: As a CIP component, I guess.
MS. SAVAGE: The community needs assessment oftentimes are built into the master
planning process. If we again, typically if we look at parks departments and how they
do these types of things, the community needs assessment usually isn’t pulled out
and done separately. Typically it would be, you know, a very expensive and large
project to say we’re gonna fund the master planning for the entire parks department
system. The first step of that, which would be built into that master planning
contract, would be the community needs assessment.
CHAIR HOKAMA: So like, you know, we.. .you know, in this contract, you know, there’s a
component for Central Maui system. Yet we gave you special money for Wailuku
master planning. So, how you folks.., so you gonna cancel part of the Central since
Wailuku has its own planning money now that we gave this current year? I’m just
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trying to figure out how you guys are gonna do this since we made special
appropriations for Wells Park master planning.
MS. SAVAGE: So for the Wells Park master planning, so again that would be a park-specific
master plan
--

CHAIR HOKAMA: Right.
MS. SAVAGE: --that we would continue to move forward with. The systematic master plan
is more of what we’re looking at. So from a Central Maui perspective, we would be
looking at taking, you know, all of the existing facilities, as well as what are the
projected future needs that come out of that community needs assessment. And it’s
then, how do we make all these master plans fit together? So instead of it just being
we’re only focusing in on one small, you know, one small area, one specific park and
just that immediate community around it. We still need to do that, but we want to
look at it from the larger scope of, how does this tie in with the rest of the parks
systems in the district?
CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. I appreciate your comments, Director. Any other questions on
We’re gonna stop here for today,
Okay.
South Maui park... Community Park?
Members, There’s requirements of everyone to get to Molokai this... by this evening.
So we’re gonna end right here. And continue with the South Maui park system when
we return on Wednesday, April 20t} at 6:00 p.m. so that is what’s happening. When
we get back from Molokai tomorrow, well take up Police Department Budget, Water
Department CIP, and Public Works CIP. So those are the three areas that your office
staff can assist you with some preparation for your convenience, Members. Okay,
with that, if there’s no questions for the Chair, we’re gonna adjourn this meeting.
There are no questions. Thank you very much, Department, for your assistance this
(gavel).
morning. We are adjourned.
.

ACTION:

ADJOURN:

.

.

DEFER pending further discussion
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APPROVED:

RIKI HOKAMA, Chair
Budget and Finance Committee
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